Jeffrey W. Patton
Chief Executive Officer

www.iskzoo.org

Administralive Services
2030 Portage Shreel
Kalamazoo, Ml 42001
(269) 553-8000

Access Center

615 East Crosslown Pkwy
Kalamazoo, Ml 42001
(269) 373-6000

(888) 373-6200

MI Relay Center: 711

Integrated Health &
Psychiatric Services
615 East Crosslown Pkwy
Kalamazoo, Ml 42001
Adulls; (269) 553-7037
Youth: (269) 553-7078

Olflice of Recipient Righls

2030 Porlage Streel
Kalamazoo, Ml 42001
(269) 364-6920

Services for Adults
with Mental lliness
2030 Portage Streel
Kalamazoo, Ml 49001
(269) 553-8000

(888) 373-6200

Services for Adults with
Intellectual and

Developmental Disabilities

418 Wes!t Kalamazoo Ave
Kalamazoo, Ml 49007
(269) 553-8060

MI Relay Center: 711

Services for Youth

and Families

418 Wesl Kalamazoo Ave
Kalamazoo, Ml 49007
(269) 553-7120

Substance Use
Disorder Services
(800) 781-0353

Training

2030 Porlage Shreet
Kalomazoo, M| 49001
(269) 364-4952

IL.
111
Iv.

VI

VIL

VIIL

IX.

XL

XIL

XL

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community e Independence ¢ Empowerment

AGENDA

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo BOARD HAS SCHEDULED ITS
MEETING FOR MONDAY, October 25,2021, BEGINNING @ 4:00PM

via Microsoft TEAMS.
CALLTO ORDER - CITY & COUNTY DECLARATION
AGENDA
MINUTES
CITIZEN TIME
RECIPIENT RIGHTS
i, Recipient Rights Monthly Report
CONSENT CALENDAR Monitoring Reports/OCTOBER MOTION/ROLL CALL VOTE
a. Board Purpose and Business Description (Policy)
b. Treatment of Persons Served w/Substantiated Complaints (Policy & Report)
. Ends Development Process (Policy)
d. Ends for Individuals Served (Policy)
& Guidelines for Board Member Appointments (Policy)
L. Customer Services (Report)
g. Customer Advisory Council Annual (Report)

PROGRAM SERVICES REPORT
a. Program Services Report

FINANCIAL REPORTS (Welcome Amy Rottman, CPA, CGEM/Rehmann)

a. Financial Condition Report

b Utilization Report

c. Investment Report

d September Disbursements MOTION

ACTION ITEMS NEW & REVISITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT VERBAL
a. CEQO Report

CITIZEN TIME

BOARD MEMBER TIME
a. SWMBH (Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health) Updates/Frik Krogh

ADJOURNMENT




INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community ® Independence ¢ Empowerment

FOCUS
COVER

o @:Mh}

CONNEC]

[11.

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) September 27, 2021

ISK Board Member Board Declaration of Location Board
Members City/County Members
PRESENT ABSENT
Erik Krogh, CHAIR X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Nkenge Bergan X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Sarah Carmany X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Ituha Cloud X
Patrick Dolly X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Pat Guenther X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Michael Raphelson X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Sharon Spears X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Michael Seals X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
Veronica McKissack, X Kalamazoo/Kalamazoo
COMMISSIONER
Jenna Verne X
ISK - KCMHSAS Staff Present: ISK - KCMHSAS Staff Absent:
Jeff Patton, CEO Lisa Brannan
Pat Davis Kathy Lentz
David Anderson Pat Weighman
Roann Bonney
Sheila Hibbs
Heather Garcia
Beth Ann Meints
Heidi Oberlin
Dianne Shaffer
Alecia Pollard
Michael Schlack, CORPORATE COUNSEL
Demeta Wallace
Providers: Guests:
Fi Spalvieri Lori Anderson Tina Graham

Chief Executive Officer
Community Living Options

Director of Programs/Quality
Community Living Options




Call to Order:
Chair Krogh welcomed all in attendance to the September 27, 2021, INTEGRATED Services of
Kalamazoo Board Planning meeting, The meeting was called to order at 4:00PM.

Agenda:
Board members reviewed the agenda for changes. Board members are recommencling no changes to
the agenda.

Minutes:
Member Spears, “I MOVE TO ACCEPT THE MINUTES FROM July 26, 2021 and August 23,
2021.” Supported by Vice Chair Longanecker.

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR

Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR

Nkenge Bergan

Sarah Carmany

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Sharon Spears

Michael Raphelson

Michael Seals

Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER
MOTION PASSED.

bl S Sl Sl S Gl S PSS

Citizen Time: No citizens came forth.

Budget Public Hearing FY2021/2022 (MOTION/ROLL CALL VOTE):

2021 Budget Public Hearing Instructions:

Chairperson (Erik Krogh): “The Public Hearing on the Integrated Services of Kalamazoo,
Proposed FY21/22 Budget is now open.” Call on Chief Fxecutive Officer, Jeff Patton.

The Chief Executive Officer (Jeff Patron): “Act 43 of the 1963 Public Acts, as amended, requires the
Authority to hold a public hearing on its proposed FY21/22 budget prior to its final adoption.”

“In accordance with the statues, notice of this public hearing was published in the Kalamazoo
Gazette, a newspaper of general circulation within the community on September 17, 2021 and copies
of the proposed budget have been available at the Administrative Offices and County Board of
Commissioners Office for inspection by the public. Copies of the proposed budget are now available
for any persons present who desire to have a copy.”

Chairperson (Erik Krogh): Call on the Deputy Director, Administrative Services, Patricia Davis, to
present the budget.




INTEGRATED Serviees of Kalamazon § 3

Executive Suminary:

Planning the budget for FY 2022 has been exceedingly challenging, Typically, we use current year
trends as the basis for the budget and then malce strategic operational changes from there. We are
still in the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic. While some services have mostly rebounded, some are
nowhere near their pre-covid levels. We are lapsing significant dollars bacl to the PIHP in the current
year and Medicaid enrollments and revenues are running higher due to pandemic measures that have
been put in place to provide security. We have been anticipating that the State would lift the
moratorium on Medicaid enrollees Josing coverage and when that happens, there will be an extremely
quick and deep reduction to the number of Medicaid enrollees and our revenue. So, while it would
appear that we have excess Medicaid funds, we are not able to commit to funding long term strategies
that would benefit the Community, Currently, we are still able to provide a robust array of services
via telehealth, through both video or audio. After the pandemic, we believe we will be able to provide
a much more limited array of services via telehealth and only provided through video pladforms. We
are not able to predict how quickly the individuals we service will adapt to only in person or video
options as much of our services are still via audio only. Now with the Delta variant, it seems we will
be remaining longer in the COVID limbo, waiting until the pandemic is over to get a good handle on
Medicaid revenues that we can count on, and waiting to determine which services will re-bound and
which will need to be completely re-configured. In the meantime, our system is crying out for
solutions to the crisis of an inability to attract, hire, and retain qualified individuals to provide critical
and necessary services, especially with Direct Care Workers and master’s level Social Workers. At
issue, is the work challenges of supporting physically and emotionally chatlenged individuals, the less
than living wages that the system is able to afford for DCWs, the safety concern over exposure to
COVID for both staff, staff families and individuals and their Families, as well as safety concerns about
using public transportation to get individuals to supportive services. '

At the same rime as Covid challenges, the State is culminating a 24month process of moving the
Community Mental Health system toward more uniformity and accountabiliry with financial and cost
reporting, Two particular initiatives are driving significant changes to future financial reporting and
contracting have an implementation start date of October 1, 2021, The first initiative, Independent
Rate Development, began with the codes used to report 90% of the services and created Rate Models
and accompanying individual rates not being mandated for usage which were presented to the
legislature. As a part of the discussion on rate models, coding changes were identitied and a
subsequent spin off workgroup began working on a significant change in the code chart (the codes
used to report the various services provided). Some of the major changes included the addition of
edlucation level modifiers to 999% of the codes and additional code/modifier combinations for group
size, and Evidence Based Practices, The result of this workgroup more than quadrupled the number of
codes/modifier combination in the MDHHS Code Chart, which requires changes to internal process,
Provider contracts, and rate structures for those code, The State also engaged a workgroup to
establish a Standard Cost Allocation (SCA) process across all CMH/P{HPs. The result of this
workgroup required significant changes to how CMHs not only report costs to the State but how
CMHs need to keep track of and record expenses at the CMH General Ledger Detail level. This
process will lead us to designing and reporting financial information differently to the Board, however,
information is coming out too slowly to be fully incorporated into this initial budget.

[3]




INTEGRATED Services ol Kalamazoo

Lastly, the State has been diligently working with CMHs on the implementation of Certified
Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC). In 2016, MDHHS applied to the Centers for
Medlicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) to become a CCBHC Demonstration state under Section 223 of
the federal Protecting Access to Medicare Act of 2014 (PAMA). That request was approved on August
5, 2020, when the federal CARES Act of 2020 authorized two additional states—Michigan and
Kentucky—to join the demonstration. As a result, MDHHS was approved for a two-year
demonstration with an anticipated implementation start date of October 1, 2021 The CMS CCBHC
Demonstration requires states and their certified sites to provide a robust set of coordinated,
integrated, and comprehensive services to all persons with any mental illness or substance use
disorder diagnosis. Moreover, the demonstration requires and emphasizes 24/7/365 crisis response
services (e.g.. mobile crisis services). Other critical elements include but are not limited to strong
accountability in terms of financial and quality metric reporting; formal coordination with primary
and other care settings to provide intensive care management and transitions; linkage to social
services, criminal justice/law enforcement, and educational systems; and an emphasis on providing
services ra veterans and active-duty service members. To account for these requirements, the state
must create a PPS reimbursement structure that finances CCBHC services at an enhanced payment
rate to properly cover costs and offer greater financial predictability and viability. The PPS is integral
to sustaining expanded services, investments in the technological and social determinants of care, and
serving all eligible Michiganders regardless of instrance or ability to pay. CCBHC implementation
recpuires extensive re-engineering of our system and conceptual changes in the roie of Providers (called
Designated Collaborating Organizations under CCBHC rules). We have been working through those
implementation requirements and the PPS rate throughout the summer. The financial pieces have not
been fully resolved yet so the impact of CCBHC is also not included in this initial budget but will be
brought forward later in the year.

Budget Overview:

The fiscal year budget that runs from Octobet 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022 (FY "22 Budget)
uses pre-COVID-19 trends in services and costs adjusted for increases and decteases to services that
have increased and/or not rebounded from COVID 19 teductions. The recommended budget for FY '22
uses the same format (PIHP and 1SK Risk) as FY "21 to reflect our current operational and financial
dynamics. During FY21, we are still challenged to manage in the COVID-19 pandemic and to make
adjustments in service delivery and safety for Consumers and Staff and we anticipate these same
challenges for FY22. COVID 19 strategies, particularly the reliance on telehealth services, have been
incorporated into this budget to the extent possible. In a few service areas thar ave still significantly
fmpacted, we are no longer able to carry the overhead cost of the services at the pre-COVID level costs
with the significantly reduced units, In those cases, we will be working with those providers to reach
agreement on a strategy going forward.

The most significant changes can be summarized as follows:

e This is an annual budget, with estimated revenues numbers. SWMBH has provided the
estimated revenues for Medicaid, Healthy Michigan, and Autism. MDHHS still has a
moratorium which mandates that Medicaid enrollees cannot lose their Medicaid benefits
during the pandemic. We believe MDHHS/SWMBH used the higher Medicaid enrollee
numbers for the estimation of revenues, Additionally, MDHHS/SWMBH revenue projections

[4]

4




INFTEGRATED Scyvices of Kalamazoo | 5

include a $2.00/hour direct care wage increase that has NOT been approved by the Legislature
yet. 1f the Legislature does not include that in the final budget, there will be a reduction to
revenues.

¢ Included in the budget is a 3% increase for ISK staff.

e 999 of the Provider rates were re-calculated based on the Independent Rate Models created by
MDHHS. Under this model, ISK will pay varying rates for the same procedure code based on
Education level of the person providing the service. This did result in a mixed bag of increases
for Providers who use those codes.

e ABA services rates are still being legislated by the State and no increase was provided as ISK is
paying at the legislated rates.

» Asanattempt to address the Direct Care Worker Crisis that Providers are experiencing, 15K
provided Local Providers of CLS and Specialized Residential services the oppottunity increase
DCW wages to a minimum base level of $15.00/hour and increased rates accordingly for those
that took advantage of that opportunity.

e Services, beginning with COVID-19 in March 2020, have been reduced and many are still not
back to pre-COVID levels. Previously ISK has tried to maintain previous levels of network
capacity through having select services on Net Cost Contracts where ISK paid for all the
expenses of the program regardiess of the number of units provided. We have not continued
that practice into FY 21/22.

¢ It's imperative that our financial management process (adoption, reporting, monitoring,
amencment) continue to reflect the new financial dynamics. This means attention to ensuring
right sized benefits for Consumers and close attention to data reporting and monitoring,

For our reporting purposes, we continue to separate our financial reporting to segregate Medicaid and
Unrestricted Fund Balance. Segregating the Medicaid funded services accurately reflects that
Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health (SWMBH) bears this financial risk for this area of our budget.
The Unrestricted Fund Balance segregation more accurately reflects that the State General Fund and
all other funding sources are our financial risk that ultimately impacts our unrestricted fund balance.

The SWMBH Risk page reports on revenues from various Medicaid sources for which SWMBH is at
risk. Meaning that SWMBH will cover all costs associated with those services. For this Medicaid
portion of the budget, it is worth noting that Medicaid revenues attributed to 1SK (based on State
rates and Medicaid eligibles) do not cover the total cost of needed services and that additional
settlement dollars will be required to provide medically necessary and required services to the
individuals. In the Healthy Michigan portion however, we are projecting surplus dollars. We are able
to net these funding sources to get to a budget that, in total, does not require excess funds from
SWMBH. Throughout this year, staff will be reviewing expenditures and adopting new business
practices to ensure the provision of medically necessary, yet least restrictive, services to bring total
service costs more in line with expected revenues.

15]




INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

This ISK Risk portion of the budget reflects revenues and expenses for which ISK is at risk, this
amount represents 18% of the FY °22 budget. Just under 22% of the ISK financial risk revenue comes
from State General Fund to support individuals who do not qualify for the Medicaid specialty services
or who are under-insured. A small percentage of State General Fund dollars can be carried forward
into the next fiscal year if they are unspent in the current fiscal year. We have budgeted up to the
maximum amount of General Fund dollars as carry forward into the FY22 year as we are not
projecting that we will spend those dollars in FY21. The portion of ISK Financial Risk comes from a
variety of sources, including State and Federal Grants and County Allocation which provide some
Federal matching dollars. We are projecting a small deficit ($61,958) in Other Funding sources in the
budget but are working toward plans to erase that budget through some operations changes. If,
however, we are unable to eliminate that deficit amount it would have a negative impact on our
Unrestricted Fund Balance.

Finally, it's important to note that this recommendation for budget adoption is only the start of an on-
going financial process that will extend throughout the fiscal year. In fact, we are already aware of two
significant changes that will require revisions to this budget. The first is the implementation of
CCBHC services and the second is ISK’s addition of services from a Provider who is going out of
business.

To review the Budget Public Hearing FY2021/2022 in its entirety, please use the follow link:
https://iskzoo.org/about-us/board/

Chairperson (Firik Krogh): “Is there anyone present who desires to ask any questions, or to make any
comments?”

No citizens came forth.

Chairperson (Erik Krogh): “I hereby declare that the Public Hearing for Integrated Services of Kalamazoo,
Proposcd FY 21/22 Budget closed.”

Chairperson (Erik Krogh) will call for MOTION.

ISK FY2021/2022 Budget (MOTION):

Member Guenther, “I move approval of the Integrated Services of Kalamazoo FY2021/2022
budget which begins October 1, 2021 in the amount of $97,976,496.00.” Supported by Member
Seals.

[6]

6



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | 7

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR X
Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR X
Nkenge Bergan X
Sarah Carmany X
Patrick Dolly X
Pat Guenther X
Sharon Spears X
Michael Raphelson X
Michael Seals X
Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER 4

MOTION PASSED.

Recipient Rights:

Recipient Rights Monthly Report:

Roann Bonney, ISK, ORR Director, presented the complaints/allegations closed in July and August
2021.

Abuse Violations:
There were 2 substantiated Abuse 11 violations in July 2021.
o The remedial actions for these violations are Training (1), Written Reprimand (1).

The 2 violations occurred at the same agency, but different program sites.

Neglect Violations:
There was one substantiated Neglect II violation in July 2021,
o The remedial actions for this violation are Training (1), Written Reprimand (1).

There were six substantiated Neglect I1I violations in July 2021. One was a Failure to Report.

o The remedial actions for these violations are Training (3), Verbal Counseling
(2), Written Reprimand (3), Plan of Service Revision (1), Employment
Termination (2).

3 of the 6 violations occurred at the same agency, 2 of these 3 violations were at the same

program site: one of those violations was Failure to Report, 2 of the 3 remaining violations
occurred at the same agency but different program sites.

[7]



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

Abuse Violations:
There were two substantiated Abuse 11 violations in August 2021.
o The remedial actions for these violations were Training (2), Staff Transfer (1),
and Written Reprimand (3).
The 2 violations occurred at the same agency and program.

There were two substantiated Abuse 11 violations in August 2021,
o The remedial actions for these violations were Staff Transfer (1), and Written
Reprimand (5).
The 2 violations occurred at different agencies.

Neglect Violations:
There were two substantiated Neglect II violations in August 2021.
o The remedial actions for these violations were Fmployment Termination (1),
and Written Reprimand (1). Both were Neglect II, Failure to Report violations.
The 2 violations occurred at different agencies.

There were five substantiated Neglect L1 violations in August 2021.

o The remedial actions for this violation were Employment Termination (2),
Training (2), Written Reprimand (4), and Policy Revision/Development (1).
One was a Neglect 111, Failure to Report violation.
3 of the violations occurred at the same agency but 3 different programs. The other 2 violations
also occurred at the same agency and the same program.

All the ORR case information is forwarded to the ISK Population Directors monthly for any tracking/trending of the RR
information in their areas of authority * (Agencies can include ISK).

Consent Calendar (MOTION/ROLL CALL VOTE):

Chair Krogh, “Are there any materials that the ISK Board would like to have removed from the
Consent Calendar before we proceed with the ROLL CALL vote?” No materials were requested to be
removed.

Monitoring Reports:
AUGUST:

" Budgeting

= Finance

= Asset Protection
SEPTEMBER:

»  Staff Treatment

* Compensation & Benefits

Member Raphelson, “I MOVE TO APPROVE THE AUGUST and SEPTEMBER MONITORING
REPORTS CONSENT CALENDAR.” Supported by: Vice Chair Longanecker.

(8]

8



INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS NAYS

Erik Krogh, CHAIR X
Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR X
Nkenge Bergan X
Sarah Carmany X
Patrick Dolly X
Pat Guenther X
Sharon Spears X
Michael Raphelson X
Michael Seals X
Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER X

MOTION PASSED.

Program Services Report (VERBAL):
The Program Services Report will be presented at the October 25, 2021 meeting,

Financial Condition Report:
Pat Davis, ISK, Deputy Director, Administrative Services, presented the Financial Condition report for
the period ending July 31, 2021 and August 31, 2021.

SWMBH:

Revenues:

Revenues for the ten-month (10) period are projected to be $60,677,070 compared to budgeted
revenues of $63,365,550. Consequently, revenues are in an un-favorable position by approximately
$2,088,540.

Revenues for the eleven-month (11) period are projected to be $67,097,481 compared to budgeted
revenues of $69,702,103. Consecuently, revenues are in an un-favorable position by approximately
$2,604,622.

Expenditures:

Expenditures for the ten-month (10) period are projected to be $60,677,010 compared to budgeted
expenditures of $63,365,550. Consequently, expenditures are in a favorable position by approximately
$2,688,540.

Expenditures for the eleven-month (11) period are projected to be 67,097,481 compared to budgeted
expenditures of 69,702,103, Consecpuently, expenditures are in a favorable position by $2,604,622.

[9]

9



INTEGRATED Scrvices of Kalamazoo | 10

ISK:

Revenues:

Revenues for the ten-month (10) period are $15,310,225 compared to budgeted revenues of
$18,048,603. Consequently, revenues are in an un-favorable position by approximately $2,738,377.

Revenues for the eleven-month (11) period are $17,125,011 compared to budgeted revenues of
$19,853,463. Consequently, revenues are in an un-favorable position by approximately $2,728,452.

Expenditures:
Fxpenditures for the ten-month (10) period are $14,639,898 compared to budgeted expenditures of
$17,587,848. Consequently, expenditures are in a favorable position by approximately $2,947,950.

Expenditures for the eleven-month (11) pumd are $16,420,927 compared to budgeted expenditures of
$19,346,633. Consequently, expenditures are in a favorable position by approximately $2,925,706.

Utilization Reports:
Pat Davis, ISK, Deputy Director, Administrative Services, presented the June 30, 2021, Utilization
Report.

= Youth Community Inpatient Services is unfavorable by $75, 189/JULY and $69,416/AUGUST

»  MI Adult Community Inpatient Services is at (1,304/July and 1,330/August) days and unfavorable at $1,228,474/July
and $1,268,162/August

»  Community Living Supports, Personal Care, and Crisis Residential is favorable at $1,242,707/July and
$925,454/August

Tuly and August Disbursements (MOTION):

Member Spears, “BASED ON THE BOARD FINANCE MEETING REVIEW, I MOVE THAT ISK
APPROVE THE JULY 2021 VENDOR DISBURSEMENTS OF $11,311,55951 and the AUGUST
2021 VENDOR DISBURSEMENTS OF $8,145,762.77.” Supported by Member Raphelson.

ROLL CALL
NAME YEAS NAYS
Firik Krogh, CHAIR X
Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR X
Nkenge Bergan X
Sarah Carmany X
Patrick Dolly X
Pat Guenther X
Sharon Spears X
Michael Raphelson X
Michael Seals X
Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER X

MOTION PASSED.

(10]



Chiel Executive Officer Report VERBAL:

INTEGRATLED Services of Kalamazon | |1

1 am very pleased to inform. you that on Friday, October 1, 2021 we completed the transfer of certain
InterAct programs and services under the direct operations of ISK. A rotal of 57 former InterAct
employees are now employed by ISK. This would not have been accomplished without the tireless
work of 45 1SK employees that not only put forward emergency arrangements to hire former InterAct
staff but assured that services continued without any disruption. You should be proud of these
individuals listed below that made this transfer successful as planned.

Shining Stars:
David Anderson Barlow Warwick

Andrea Bedard Jodi Best
Charlotte Bowser Lisa Brannan
Darcy Buchoz-Ros Dawn Carter

Josh Dale Pat Davis

Lisa Exnst Heather Garcia
Chantel Graham Holly Greene
Luuvia Jackson Karla James
Mona Kana'an Jena Kidney
Cheryl Lark Kathy Lentz
Nancy McDonald Victoria McDuffey
Teresa Moser Nate Nielsen
Amy O’'Halloran Nicole Olweean
Dianne Shaffer Ed Sova
Michael Venner Kathy Wait

Heather Barsy
Karyn Bouma
Wanda Brown
Tracey Culpepper
Melanie Droghetti
Becky Gorton
Sheila Hibbs
Cortney Jennings
Jonathan Klok
Teresa Lewis
Beth Ann Meints
Heidi Oberlin
Lindsey O"Neil
Brittany Tropp
Sandy Walenga

The 418 Building construction and renovations are moving forward. Gentle reminder that this will
include the demolition of the Acme Building with reconfigurations for thar space.

After 29 years of employment with 15K, Heather Garcia has accepted another position with
Kalamazoo County. | often tease her and tell her that she was born at ISK, #LOL. She has beena
stellar employee with an ontseanding skill set. We will miss her and hope nothing but the best for
Heather. Heidi Oberlin, ISK, Director of the Integrated Health clinic will also be retiring on October

8, 2021
Welcome back, Michael Seals.

" Board Member Time

SWMBH (Southwest Michigan Behavioral Health) Updates/Erilkk Krogh.

There are no new updates to report. [ compliment Jeff and his staff for their committed work to our
persons served in this community and with the transition of InterAct of Michigan to ISK,

Nkenge Bergan:

I have nothing urgent to report. However, I'm getting acclimated into my new position at KVCC.,
Huge kuclos to Jeff and his leadership team for acting swiftly to keep the program and scrvices

operational at InterAct of Michigan.




INTEGRATID Scrvices of Kalamazoo

Karen Longanecker:

1 echo the sentiments regarding the transmomng of InterAct of Michigan to ISK. Just a gentle
reminder to stay alert for the Shirkey bills (597 & 598). 1f implemented, it would be a disaster to the
CMHSPs system.

Saralh Carmany:;
1 was fortunate to give written comments to the U.S, Senate Judiciary Committee at their hearing on
Tuesday, Seprember 28k, See below.

“Hi, my name is Sarah Carmany. 'm 36 years old. [ live in Kalamazoo, Michigan. I grew up in a rural
area called Climax, Michigan, which is stuck between Cathoun county and Kalamazoo county. I've got
autism spectrum disorder and I'm an independent self-determined individual. [ live in my own
apartment and I cook, and clean, and keep myself up on my own. But [ do have a representative payee
to help me budget out my money because | need help with that. I do have a circle of support where 1
can talk about big decisions like going back to school and driving ete.

I've never ever been under guardianship. At least I don't remember my parents going to court and
obtaining guardianship probably because it’s too expensive and my mom always taught me at a very
young age to be independent and self-determined. I don't know if the school ever told my parents that
I must be put under guardianship ot not. { do know that my parents went to IEP meetings in
elementary and intermediate school, But starting in Junior high all the way through high school 1 was
attending my IEP meetings all on my own without mom and dad. My mom bailed out leaving me to do
it all by myself. | was able to avoid guardianship cause my parents never messed with going to court.

Life without a guardian can be hard especially when [ did my 1EPs on my own during the last part of
my grade school days. The school did what they wanted. As an adult other people’s guardians would
try to tell me what to do and try to make decisions for me and try telimg me what to do even when
they aren’t a legalized guardian over me. 1 dislike that with a passion.”

Patrick Dolly:
Great Job! Jeff on the transition of InterAct of Michigan to ISK. Thank you for your leadership and

compassion for the consumers.

. Pat Guenther:
Outstanding work Jeff and your leadership team on the transition of InterAct of Michigan to ISK. I'm,
so proud of the work that you perform and to be apart of this ISK board.

Veronica McKissack:
Welcome back to the ISK Board, Michael Seals! The Kalamazoo County Commissioners selected him
to serve on this board. The new justice center construction is moving according to schedule.

Michael Raphelson:
Great work with the transition of InterAct of Michigan. Congratulations! To Pat Davis and Heather
Garcia. Thank you, both for your work performance and someone will have some large shoes to fill.

[12]

12




Michael Seals:

INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo | 13

I'm elated to be back on the ISK Board. Good things are happening to ISK because of a good leader
and executive staff. The states homeless population continue to grow at astronomical proportions.
Several in the community are working diligently to provide resources and services to that population.
Within Franklin Park an old ambulance has been transformed into a treatment center which is a great

assct.

ADJOURNMENT:

Vice Chair Longanecker, “I MOVE TO ADJOURN THE ISK BOARD PLANNING MEETING.”

Supported by Member Bergan.

ROLL CALL
NAME

Frik Krogh, CHAIR

Karen Longanecker, VICE CHAIR
Nkenge Bergan

Sarah Carmany

Patrick Dolly

Pat Guenther

Sharon Spears

Michael Raphelson

Michael Seals

Veronica McKissack, COMMISSIONER

MOTION PASSED.

Meeting was adjourned at 5:44PM.

Demeta ]. Wallace
Administrative Coordindator
INTEGRATED Services of Kalamazoo

[13]

YEAS NAYS

Al Sl S S e Sl S el



V.a.

Office of Recipient Rights
Report to the Mental Health Board

On Complaints/Allegations
Closed in: September 2021




Office of Recipient Rights Report to the Mental Health Board
Complaints/Allegations Closed in September 2021

] FY 20-21 FY 19-2¢
Tatal # of Complaints Closed ] 383 ' | 484
Total # of Allegations Closed | 660 .1 762
Total # of Allegations Substantiated | 208 1 187

The data below represents the total number of closed allegations and substantiations for the foliowing categories:
Consumer Safety, Dignity/Respect of Consumer, Treatment Issues, and Abuse/Neglect,

ALLEGATIONS September 2021 September 2020

Category TOTAL - - | SUBSTANTIATED | ' TOTAL - | SUBSTANTIATED
Consumer Safety D 11 Q] g

Dignity/Respect of Consumer 17 14 12.° 1s

Treatment Issues/Suitable Services 12
(Including Person Centered Planning)

Abuse [ .
Abuse H 12
Abuse HI 2
Neglect | 10
Neglect 1] 1
Neglect 111 3
14
APPEALS “September 2021 - FY 20-21 -'sg';:@teni ber 2020 FY 19-20

Uphold Investigative Findings & Plan of Action { 1'-

- 10 0
9

Return Investigation to ORR;

Reopen or Reinvestigate

Upheld Investigative Findings but Recommend
Respondent Take Additional or Different Action
to Remedy the Violation

Request an External Investigation

by the State ORR

ABUSE AND NEGLECT DEFINITIONS — SUMMARIZED

Abuse Class I means serious injury to the recipient by staff. Also, sexual gontact between a staff and a recipient.
Abuse Class II means non-serious injury or exploitation to the recipient by staff and includes using unreasonable foree,
even if no injury results.

Abuse Class I means communication by staff o a recipient that is threatening or degrading. (such as; puiting down,
making fun of; insulting)

Neglect Clags I means a serious injury occurred because a staff person DID NOT do something he or she should have
done (an omission). It also includes failure to report apparent or suspected abuse I or neglect I of a recipient.

Negleet Class T means a non-serious injury occurred to a recipient because a staff person DID NOT do something he
or she should have done (an omission). 1t also includes failure to report apparent or suspected abuse I1 or neglect I of a
recipient

Neglect Class 11T means a recipient was put at risk of pbysical harm or sexual abuse because a staff person DID NOT
do something he or she should have done per rule or guideline. 1t also includes failure to report apparent or suspected
abuse I11 or neglect 1H of a recipient.




ORR ADDENDUM TO MH BOARD REPORT
October 2021

Re: September 2021 Abuse/Neglect Violations

September

Abuse Violations

There were two substantiated Abuse H violations in September 2021.

O The remedial actions for these violations were Employment
Termination (1), Contract Action (1), Training (1), and Verbal
Counseling (1). There was one staff invoived in each citation.

The 2 vielations occurred at different agencies,

There was one substantiated Abuse III violation in September 2021,

O The remedial action for this violation was Employment Termination

(1).

Neglect Viclations

There was one substantiated Neglect 1I violation in September 2021. It
was a Neglect I, Failure fo Repott violation.

o The remedial action for this violation was Employment
Termination (1).

There were four substantiated Neglect I1I violations in September 2021,

O The remedial actions for these violations were Employment
Termination (1), Training (1), Verbal Counseling (2), Contract
Action (1), and Written Reprimand (2). There was one staff involved
in each of three citations.

The 4 violations occurred at 2 agencies. The 3 violations
occurring at the same agency occurred at 3 different program
sites.

All of the ORR case information is forwasded to (he KCMHSAS Popelation Directors on a monthly basis for any tracking/ftrending of
the RR information in their areas of authority. *{Apencies can include KCMIHSAS).




Vl.a.
INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO

BOARD POLICY I1.01

ARFA: Governance

SECTION: Board Governance Process PAGE: 1of2

SUPERSEDES:  01/23/2012

SUBJECT: BoARD PURPOSE AND BUSINESS DESCRIPTION REVISED: 10/28/2019

PURPOSE/EXPLANATION
To identify the purpose and business description of the Board.
POLICY

‘The purpose of governance is that the Board, on behalf of the citizens of Kalamazoo
County, guarantees the accountability of Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) by
assuring that it (a) achieves appropriate results' for the appropriate persons at an
appropriate cost and (b) avoids unacceptable activities, conditions and decisions. In
fulfillment of this charge the Board is committed to rigorous, continual improvement of
its capability to define values and vision, seeking out community input.

To distinguish the Board’s own unique business from the business of its staff, the Board
will concentrate its efforts on the following business “cutcomes” or outputs:

A, The link between the organization and the citizens of Kalamazoo County.
B. Written governing policies which, at the broadest levels, address; J,

1. Ends
The outcomes, impacts, benefits of services provided for the persons
served and their relative worth (what good for which needs and within the
budget).

2. Executive Limitations '
Constraints on executive authority that establish the prudence and ethics
boundarics within which all executive activity and decisions must take
place,

3. Governance Process
Specification of how the board conceives, carries out and monitors its own
task.

4. Board-Chief Executive Officer Relationship
How power is delegated and its proper use monitored; the Chief Executive
Officer role, authority and accountability,




POLICY: 1101 Board Purpose and Business Description Page: 20of2 |

C. The assutance of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) performance (against policies in

B.1.and B.2.),
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER: APPROVED:
Erik Kiogh 4

Chief Bxecutive Officer Board Chair




Vib.

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZQO

BOARD POLICY V.01
AREA: QGovernance
SECTION: Executive Limitations PAGE: 10of3
y SUPERSEDES: 10/26/2015
SUBJECT: TREATMENT OF PERSONS SERVED REVISED: 10/29/2018
PURPOSLE/EXPLANATION

To define limitations of means regarding the treatment of persons served.

POLICY

L With respect to interactions with persons served or individuals applying to teceive
services, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) shall not cause or allow conditions,
procedures or decisions which are unsafe, disrespectful, unduly undignified,
unnecessarily intrusive or which fail to provide appropriate confidentiality and
privacy, According, he/she may not:

A, Use application forms or procedures that elicit information for which there
is no clear necessity.

B. Use methods of collecting, reviewing, or storing information on persons
served that fail to protect against improper access to the information i
elicited. :
i
C. Maintain facilities that fail to provide a reasonable level of privacy, both

gudio and visual.

D.  Fail to provide procedural safeguards for the transmission of information.
E. Fail to inform persons served of their options, choices, and conditions.
F. Fail to clearly communicate with persons served what may be expected

and what may not be expected from the service offered.

a. Fail to provide petsons served with grievance processes which they
understand and feel free to use without fear of direct or indirect, intended
or unintended retaliation or retribution when they believe that they have
not been accorded a reasonable interpretation of their rights under this
policy.




POLICY: V.01 Treatment of Persons Served.doc Page: 2o0f3

H. Fail to provide a state-certified Recipient Rights System.

L. Fail to acknowledge and respect the right of competent persons served, the
" parent of a minor, or other properly designated surrogates to decline any,
and all, forms of medical intervention, including life-saving or life-
prolonging treatment for the person served. To the greatest extent
possible, ISK will honor those decisions or the desires stated in properly
executed advanced directives such as do-not-resuscitate orders and durable
powers of attorney (see ISK administrative policy 31.03 [Decision Making
Power of Attorney and Guardianship], procedure 31.03 01 [Advance
Directives for Health Care Decisions] and procedure 31.01 02
[Guardianship and Alterpatives to Guardianship for Adults Served]).

J. Fail to administer a person-centered process for persons receiving mental
health services based on the principles within the Michigan Mentul Health
Code (MMHC) and the Michigan Department of Health and Human
Services (MDHHS) Person-Centered Planning Best Practice Guidelines.

K.  Fail to administer an Individual Treatment and Recovery Planning process
for persons receiving substance use disorder services based on the
ptinciples within the Michigan Office of Recovery Oriented Systems of
Care Policy #P-T-06 on Individualized Treatment and Recovery Planning.

L. Fail to include families in the planning and delivery of services using the
principles from the MDHHS Family-Driven and Youth-Guided Policy &
Practice Guideline.

II.  This policy will be monitored through internal mechanisms on a semi-annual
basis.

REFERENCES

- Public Act 258 of 1974 (Mental Health Code) supplemented through Act 152 of
1996: Sec. 232

- Person-Centered Planning Practice Guideline Attachment P3.4.1.1 to MDHHS
contract PTHP's (most cutrent published version)

- MDHHS, Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities Administration,
TREATMENT POLICY #06 on Individualized Treatment and Recovery Planning

- Family-Driven and Youth-Guided Policy & Practice Guideline, Attachment
P6.8.6.1 to MDHHS contract PIHP’s (most current published version)




POLICY: V.01 Treatinent of Persons Served.doc

Page: 3Jof3

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFTFICER

Cpit
Jeff Pa

Chief Exccutive Officer

BOARD CHAIR

G Ko

Erik Krogh '~
Board Chair




INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community ® Independence ® Empowerment

TREATMENT OF PERSONS SERVED
October 2021

FY21 Data April 1, 2021-September 30, 2021



Integrated Services of Kalamazoo
Treatment of Persons Served Report
October 2021

EXECUTIVE LIMITATION POLICY:

“with respect to interactions with persons served, or individuals
applying to receive services, the Chief Executive Officer shall not
cause or allow conditions, procedures, or decisions which are
unsafe, disrespectful, unduly undignified, unnecessarily intrusive, or
which fail to provide appropriate confidentiality and privacy.”

ACCORDINGLY, THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER MAY NOT:

A. Use application forms or procedures that elicit information for
which there is no clear necessity.

Response;
Forms (paper and electronic) are based on the Michigan Depariment of

Health and Human Services requirements and accreditation standards.
Each element of the clinical record has been cross referenced with external
requirements/standards to help ensure that Integrated Services of
Kalamazoo (ISK} expectations are set on necessity.

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) is compliant with this requirement.

B. Use methods of collecting, reviewing, or storing information on
persons served that fails to protect against improper access to
the information elicited.

Response:
All information of persons served is managed by provider contract,

business associate agreements, and policy boundaries; these include
recipient rights, compliance, and quality management policies. Information
on persons served is safequarded and limited only to those with a need to
access the information. ISK has processes in place to monitor appropriate
access to protected health information of persons served in the electronic
health record. ISK also holds a Breach Notification policy that outlines
expectations and processes to follow in the cccurrence of a potential or
actual breach. :

ISK is compliant with this requirement.

C. Maintain facilities that fail to provide a reasonable level of
privacy, both audio and visual.

Response:
All business conducted with persons served is done in private areas or in

places determined by the individual. If complaints occur in this area, the

2




Office of Recipient Rights and/or the Privacy Officer will investigate and
recommend corrective action{s} as needed.

ISK is compliant with this requirement.

D. Fail to provide procedural safeguards for the transmission of
information,

Response:
Recipient Rights, Compliance, and Information Management policies are in

place in order to protect the confidentiality of persons served. All clinicians
working out in the community have been supplied with computers that
have safeguards against security breaches, ISK Compliance and
Information management takes steps to ensure the HIPAA compliant
platforms are utilized for telehealth appointments. Other devices that have
access to confidential information of persons served are encrypted for
security and protection. ISK also holds a Breach Netification policy that
outlines expectations and processes to follow in the occurrence of a
potential or actual breach.

ISK is compliant with this requirement.

E. Fail to inform persons served of their options, choices and
conditions,

Kesponse. :
Intake admission procedures, recipient rights policies and person-centered

planning, all work toward informing the individual of their options and
choices.

ISK is compliant with this requirement.

F. Fail to establish with persons served, a clear contract of what
may be expected and what may not be expected from the services
offered.

Response: _
When starting services, individuals are given the Customer Services
Handbook, which provides extensive information on services and
expectations. Individuals are provided information on services, the persori-
centered planning process, and program expectations. The signature of
each person served is obtained on relevant documenis to help ensure that
all required information is clearly and adequately provided to each
individual.

ISK is compliant with this requifement.

G. Fail to provide persons served with grievance processes which
they understand and feel free to use without fear of direct or

3




indirect, intended or unintended retaliation or retribution when
they believe that they have not been accorded a reasonable
interpretation of their rights under this policy.

Response
Each person served of mental health services is tnformed of their rights

under the Michigan Mental Health Code, as well as their right to access the
gricvance and appeal process. The Office of Recipient Rights notifies the
recipient/ complainant of their right to appeal the findings of each Recipient
Rights investigation. ISK policy and the Mental Health Code include
provisions that forbid retaliation/harassment in conjunction with rights
activity.

ISK is compliant with these requirements.

H. Fail to provide a state-certified recipient rights system.

Response
The Michigan Department of Health and Human Services Office of

Recipient Rights found ISK ito be in full compliance with recipient rights
systems standards in December 2018. ISK is certified through the fall of
2021.

ISK is compliant with this requirement.

[. Fail to acknowledge that competent persons served, or their
surrogates have the right to decline any and all forms of medical
intervention, including lifesaving or life-prolonging treatment...

Response
General information about Advance Directives is included in the Customer

Handboaok, which is given to each individual at the time of starting ISK
funded services. Advance Directives information is again offered to person
served, as appropriate, whenever an individual plan of service is
completed.

ISK is compliant with these requirements.

J. Fail to administer a Person-centered Process for persons
receiving mental health services
K. Fail to include families in the planning and delivery of services.

Response
ISK operates under the Person/ family-centered Planning Process Policy for

all mental heaith. The ISK Quality Monitoring Review process continually
reviews a sampling of plans to ensure that plans are follow the applicable
policies and guidelines.

ISK is compliant with these requirements.




OFFICE OF RECIPIENT RIGHTS

SUBSTANTIATED COMPLAINTS - DATA
April 1, 2021-September 30, 2021

TOTAL FOR ALL CATEGORIES: 305

Abusefl.\.l.eg. lect

Personal Property

Abuse | 0 | Possession and Use 11

Abuse 11 30

Abuse 111 3

Neglect 1 0

Neglect 11 19

Neglect 111 44

Sexual Abuse 2

Admission/Discharge Photographs, Fingerprints, 0

Second Opinion/denial of 0 | Audiotapes, One-Way Glass 0

Hospitalization Prior Consent 0

Communications/Visits Rights Protection System

Access to Phone 4 | Access to Rights System 0

Visitation 0 | Comp. Investigation Process 2

Uncensored mail 0 [ Failure to Report 1
Retaliation/harassment 2

Confidentiality Suitable Services

Disclosure of Confidential Info. 13 | MH Services Suited to Condition | 61

Withholding of Information § | Informed Consent 0

Privileged Communication 1 | Services of MH Professional 0

Family Rights Treatment Environment

Dignity and Respect 5 | Safe Environment 14
Sanitary/Humane Environment 13
Dignity/Respect 49
Assessment of Needs i

Financial Treatment Planning

Safeguarding money 1 | Person-Centered Planning 1

Ability to use or spend as desired | 1 | Timely Development of Plan 1

Labor and Compensation 1 | Treatment Planning: Other 0

Easy Access to Money in Account | 1

Freedom of Movement Civil Rights

Seclusion 2 | Religion Practice 1

Restrictions/Limitations 2

Restraint 0

All substantiated complaints result in remedial action, per the

Michigan Mental Health Code.




Vi,

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO

BOARD POLICY 1106

AREA:

Governance

SECTION: Board Governance Process PAGE: 1 of 1

SUBJECT: EnNDSDEVELOPMENT PROCESS

SUPERSEDES:  10/22/2012
REVISED: 10/28/2019

PURPOSE/EXPLANATION

To define the Board’s process for the development of Ends,

POLICY

The Board is responsible to develop Ends policies that define the needs that the
organization will satisfy, for who and within the budget. In order to promote the
development of appropriate and meaningful Ends policies, the following steps will be

taken:

A,

Gather information and build knowledge regarding an identified topic through
tesearch and the exploration of current and state of the art practices, trends, etc.

Gather input from the community and stakeholders, including:
1. ownership (citizens)

2. persons served and their families

3 advocates

4, providers

Board discussion, development and approval of the Ends for each population.

Request the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and his/her staff to develop and
propose to the Board a means to measure each of the Ends statements for each of
the populations. The proposed mieans to measure will be presented to the Board
for their approval.

Review and assess cutrent information regarding the population and stakeholder
expectation on outcomes input and update the ends statements when needed.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER APPROVED

G St b

Erik Krogh ¢

Chief Executive Officer Boatd Chair




VId.

INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO

BOARD POLICY 1V.01
_ AREA: Governance
SECTION: S8ystem Governance PAGE: 1of2
. SUPERSEDES: (5/23/2016
SUBJIECT: ENDS FOR INDIVIDUALS SERVED REVISED: 10/29/2018
PURPOSE/EXPLANATION

To identify the ends which the Board desires to achieve for Integrated Services of
Kalamezoo ([SK) populations served, which include:

+  Children with Serious Emotional Disturbances

«  Children with Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities

»  Adults with Mental Illness

o Adults with Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities

+ Individuals with Substance Use Disorders

These ends consist of what benefits for what people at what cost. Achievement of these
ends will promote an effective service delivery system, which fulfills the mission of the
agency and is consistent with the requirements of the Michigan Department of Health and
Human Services (MDHHS) and Certified Communily Behavioral Healih Clinic

{(CCBHC).
POLICY
L. Individuals will receive services and supports which enables them to be healthy, safe, and

to reach their fuil potential. Each individual will experience services and supports that
are individualized, strength-based, culturally & linguistically competent, home,
community and school based, effective, sustainable, and continuously improving in
quality. Services and supports will be delivered in the least restrictive, most natural
settings possible.

II.  To accomplish these ends, goals and objectives will be set in the following domain areas
for each population listed above:

A, Employment and Education

B. Living Arrangements

C. Recovery / Self-Determination

b. Health and Wellness 5




[ POLICY:  [V.01 Bods for Individuals Served.dog Page:  20f2

E. Family and Community Life

M. The Board established ends will be monitored on an ongoing basis by ISK staff and
through semi-anfiual reports from the “Dashboard and Qutcomes Reporting System”™.

REFERENCES

A. Public Act 258 of 1974 (Mental Health Code) suppiemented through ACT 152 of
1996: Sections 206 and 208

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER APPROVED
07 “s M&
Jeff Patghrd * ik Krogh

Chief Executive Officer Board Chair




INTEGRATED SERVICES OF KALAMAZOO

Vle.

BOARD POLICY 1.03
AREA; Govemance
SECTION: Mission/Vision/Values & Bylaws PAGE: 1of3
SUBJECT: GUIDELINES FOR BOARD MEMBER SUPERSEDES: 10/31/2019
" APPOINTMENTS : REVISED: 10/28/2019
PURPOSE/EXPLANATION

POLICY

L

1.

I

To outline the process in assisting the Kalamazoo County Board of Commissioners for
the appointment of ISK Board members.

ISK desires broad community representation on its Board and it shall be the policy of this
organization to actively seek members who will represent the individuals being served by
ISK, in terms of geographic area (within Kalamazoo County), race, ethnicity, sex, gender
identity, disability, age, sexual orientation and types of disorders for which ISK provides
services (mental illness, serious emotional disorders, substance use disorders and
developmental/intellectual disorders).

When a vacahcy occurs on the ISK Board, due to the resignation of a County
Commissiones, the County Board of Commissioners may appoint & member from the
Board of Commissioners.

All other vacancies will be handled with the following process:

A,

During a regularly scheduled board meeting the ISK Board will appoint a
selection committee.

ISK. will notify the County Board of Commissioners of the vacancy and its -
beginning of the candidate selection process.

The candidate selection committee will oversee the solicitation and collection of
applications from interested individuals. Al applications will be delivered to the
Executive Assistant for processing.

The candidate selection committee will review the applications and select up to
three candidates who are qualified under state law and who the committee
determines would be likely to be a strong addition to the ISK Board. The
applications of those individuals will be submitted to the County Board of
Commissioners to continue the County interview process.




POLICY: 103 Guidelines for Board Member Appointments Page: 20of3

E. The candidate selection committee will consider the following requirements,
pursuant to section 222 of the Michigan Mental Health Code (MCL 330.1222),
Federal Rules 42 CFR 455.104-106 and desired demographic factors pursuant to
the ISK stated goals of representing all individuals served by ISK, when reviewing
applications:

1. The composition of the Board must be representative of providers of
belavioral health services, recipients or primary consumers of behavioral
health services, agencies and occupations having a working involvement
with behavioral health services and the general public. At least 5% of the
Board must be primary consumers or family members, at least two
members must be primary consumers.

2. Not more than four members of the Board may be Kalamazoo County

' Commissioners and not more than half of the total board members may be
state, county or local public officials (defined as an individual serving in
an elected or appointed public office or employed more than 20 hours per
week by an agency of federal, state, city or local government),

3. No more than half (50%) of Board members may derive more than 10% of
their annual income from the health care industry.

4, Board members must be able to meet the requirements of Federal Rules 42
CFR 455.104-106, which detail disclosure requirements for the purpose of
monitoring and determining fraud, waste and abuse of Medicaid funds.

5, Board members shall have theit primary place of residence in Kalamazoo
County, - : ’

6. No person employed by the Michigan Department of Health and Human
Services (MDHHS) or Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (ISK) is eligible
to serve on the Board,

7. No petson who is a party to a contract with ISK or administering or
benefiting financially from & contract with ISK is eligible to serve on the
Board.

8. No person setving in a policy-making position with an agency under

contract with ISK is eligible to serve on the Board.

92, To the extent possible, individuals appointed to the ISK Board should
include people who represent all individuals being served by ISK.
Therefore, demographic factors such as geographic area, race, ethaicity,
sex, gender identity, disability, age, sexual orientation and type of
disorders for which ISK provides services will be considered.

F. One or more of the members of the candidale selection committee will attend the
County Board of Commissioners interviews.

G. The County Beard of Commissioners appoints the selected individual as a
member of the ISK Board.




POLICY: 103 Guidelines for Board Member Appointments Page: 3 of3

1V. It shail be a requirement of serving on the ISK Board that upon appointment, and when
requested from time to time, Board members will confidentially provide their name,
address, date of birth, Social Security number and other information as necessary to
comply with federal or state laws and regulations,

REFERENCE

- Michigan Mental Health Code (MCL, 330.1222)

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER APPROVED
Jeﬁp?ef Erik Krogh v
Chief Executive Officer ' Board Chair




Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (I1SK) VLL
Customer Services Report to the Board for @ 3and 4  of FY 2020-2021

ISK committee/project participation: SWMBH committee/project paticipation:

iy :Committee/Project. ominittee/Proje

Quality Improvement Committee Customer Services

Provider Quality Monitoring Reviews/Audits Coordination of Customer Notices for Mi Health Link
Policy Development/Review Quality Improvement Commitiee {ad hoc)
Management Team Customer Survey project liaison

JETT Committee (ad-hoc)
Customer Advisory Council
CARF. 2018 Plan of Correction implementation. 1SK has created new staff training materials to reflect
positive approaches to working through service transitions in levels of care as well as discharge from all ISK
services. Additionally, updates to several clinical forms will allow staff to better identify and track the steps
customers are taking te move throughout ISK services.

2022 Planned Accreditation Review: Final touches are being made on the application for our review in 2022,
As part of the Quality Management Unit, the CS Manager wili be taking primary role in the ISK preparation
steps for this review. Lead staff for each of the administrative and programmatic areas we will be evaluated
in have been identified and early prep work is underway with CS Manager available as support.

Root Cause Analyses for Sentinel Events: Within this fiscal year, ISK has been reviewing 11 incidents in
which customers experienced unexpected occurrence invalving death or serious physical or psychological
injury - or the risk thereof. Of the events under review. 9 were deaths and 2 were serious injury. The ISK
Oversight Committee is meeting 10/15/21 to finalize review of these incidents and endorse the improvement
action steps that stemmed from the Root Cause Analyses of each incident.

Trauma-informed Care Team: Continue 1o be frainer for administrative staff for "Step 2" classes.

Suicide Prevention Planning Team: Membership on the pianning committee. Continued with Mentai Health
First-Aid and safeTALK Instruction. For this fiscal year in total, co-taught 8 MHFA classes and co-taught 2
safeTALK classes. Into 2021-2022. ISK is continuing to schedule opportunities for both MHFA and safeTALK
for staff/providers/community members.

New MDHHS project for the CMH/PIHP system: For this fiscal year, MDHHS implemented a quarterly
reporting process for each CMH to send data identifying all customer Grievances and Appeals. This data has
traditionally been reported by I1SK to SWMBH and data continues to be reported to the PIHP on MDHHS
created spreadsheets. A more significant data set is quarterly reporting of all of the service denials.made by
each CMH. This includes denials of services made as a result of an intake assessment, emergency
assessment for psychiatric hospitalization, as well as denials or partial denials/approval of services in addition
to what is in a current Plan of Service. For the first 3 quarters of the year, data also included reporting of all
reductions and terminations of currently authorized services. Info FY 2022, we are encouraged that MDHHS
will continue to modify the data set based on feedback from the fieid.

State-wide meetings/committees:
Continued fo participate in participate in meelings and peer collaboratio
Was proclor at several sessions for the annual confersnce.
Participation in CMHAM-hosted commitiee.

Planning Committee for 2021 Walk-A-Mile event. While 1SK did not send participants out of
concerns for safe travel arrangements, 1SK did submit a statement to be read as part of the
day that was created by the Customer Advisory Council. “Together we are stronger when we
Refocus, Reconnect, and Recover”

A Comm ltteo
Customer Services

n.

Public Relations

[ N BNE I J

-1- TL 10/14/21




Integrated Services of Kalamazoo (ISK)
Customer Services Report to the Board for Q 3and 4  of FY 2020-2021

Community Education Activities
« Community event scheduling and participation continue to be altered by the continuing challenges of
COVID-19. However, we were able to participate in a few of our traditional events such as:
o Project Connect
o Weliness and Recovery Fair
o Suicide Awareness and Prevention Walks sponsored by Gryphon Place and the American
Foundation for Suicide Prevention.

See Attached FY to date Appeal and Grievance Logs for ISK
Questions about data can be sent to Teresa Lewis, LBSW at 553-7000 or tlewis@iskzoo.org.

@ TL 10/14/21



Southwest Michigon Behovioral Health
Customer Grievance and Appea! Data

FY 2020-21

Kalamazoo Medicaid

Activity Outcome Q1 Qz Q3 Q4
L
ocal Appeals Withdrawn
Including: .
Termination Decision 1 2 7
Reduction .. Upheld/Affirmed - e
S i £
LPENS on'o Decision Overturned 2 2 2
d Denial of
a.n- enia o, Settled/Resoived
additional services
Withdrawn
e : 2
ad Uphetd/Affirmed
Access 27 Opinions |- e e -
Decision Overturned i 1
Settled/Resolved 1
Withdrawn
R e
Upheld/Affirmed
Declston Overturned
Sattled/Resolved
Withdrawn 1
Decision Affirmed
Medicald {Fair) Hearing| "~~~ "
No Show
Settled/Resolved
Withdrawn
Information only
Gr‘evances e e e e
Settled/Resolved 3 1 2

. Rec|p|ent R;ghts - -

Referral




Vig.
Customer Advisor'y“éouncil
INTEGRATED Report to the Board of Directors
Services of Kalamazoo OCtO‘ber 202 1

Data Review and Recommendations

Type of Data: Customer Grievances and Appeals.

Time Period of data reviewed: FY 20-21 data is slated to be reviewed at the December 2021
meeting.

Summary of findings: unable to determine at this time.

Recommendations for Board: Board will be updated if there are recommendations from CAC data
review.

Consultations

Topic: ISK CCBHC Implementation
Requesting Department: CCBHC Project Management
Recommendations/Discussion Points of CAC:
e Members talked about the concern that “getting better” could disrupt their access to services
and expressed relief that ISK has new resources to fill gaps in access and eligibility.
e Members expressed interest in ISK’s efforts to train local police officers in Mental Health First
Aid and talked about a recent training hosted at Recovery Institute.
e Members asked about the possibility of utilizing volunteers at the Crisis Hub or in other roles.
This will be brought to HR to discuss potential benefits/risks.

CCBHC has become a quarterly topic for the CAC into FY 2020-2021. CCBHC will be the focus topic
of at least 4 meetings into the new year.

Project Plans

Project: Advocacy

Status Update: TBD fully

All members have stated they want to take more active steps within the CAC to advocate for
appropriate mental health and substance use services throughout Michigan. Members are currently
discussing how they want to make this a practical project with identified goals.

10/14/21 TL



Customer Advisory Council

INTEGRATED Report to the Board of Directors
Services of Kalamazoo october 2021

ammunity = Independance « Empowenment

Hurdles to Overcome for Projects/Activities

Activities of the CAC were diminished due to the pandemic in this year as they had been in the
previous year. Many of the members are not able to fully take advantage of technology — either due
to limited skills/lunderstanding or due to no/limited access to internet or equipment to allow for tech
use. We had planned on return to in-person meetings in November 2020, however with the
changing pandemic landscape, meetings were held virtually (telephone conference for most
members) until June 2021. To participate on-site, members all agree to follow ISK safety
precautions. A few members have elected to continue telephonic participation.

Also, over the past year, a few of our regular members are not able to participate as actively as they
had previously. We have created new/updated “sign up” materials that we are going to be sharing
throughout ISK programs over the next few months to encourage new membership for 2022.

Title: Walk A Mile

Date: 9/29/21

Summary: Members were planning on taking advantage of the transportation and food
arrangements that ISK had in place. Unfortunately, ISK made the difficult decision to not participate
in the event “live” this year. CAC members did develop the ISK statement that was sent to event
planners to share at the event on behalf of ISK: “Together we are stronger when we Refocus,
Reconnect, and Recover. *

Recommendation of CAC: The same as last year, “Keep supporting our participation in the WAM.
And we will participate however we can.”

This year, ISK modified the customer stipend policy that affords payment to CAC members. [SK
policy now matches the stipend payments that SWMBH pays customer committee members for their
active participation. Members of the CAC now can earn $40 for in-person meeting participation and
$25 for telephonic/telehealth participation. This is up from the pervious $25 for in-person and $10 for
telephone participation. Members have all voice appreciation to ISK for increasing their stipend
dollars.

For more information

e |f board members would like to more information about the CAC, please contact Teresa Lewis
at 269-553-7000 or TLewis@iskz00.0rg

10/14/21 TL



00S°£Z$ iejol 005'¢Z $ 1oL
saoUapISal 000S ¢ 1Bus)
0005$ uapuadsapu asow Bulysijgelse piemo 80Inossy BuisNoM MS| 90 12
voddns jeuoileanpa ‘saouaplsal 00se $ (0O719D)
005cs juspuadspul ‘spsau sIBd Yl BSY pIBmMO] suoldQ) Bula AHunuwo?) S0 LZ
SlusA® UojBIge|2D Allunwiuod Buipinoid
pLe ‘$1S00 jeuciieanpa yim Buigsisse ‘spasu 0005 $ Juswipeda s921A98
0005¢ 24e0 L eay jawun asiwusylo unsswu piemo | Saljiwe-4 pue YInoA 4S| ¥0 L2
spasu
alesy)ieay jeumn esimiaylo josw disy o pue 000¢€ $ (S0%4)
000¢$ SOOUSPISSI JuSpUSdapul Bulysiigeiss plemo] SHOIMRS UBIP(IYD B Allwe &0 L2
saouapisal Juapuadapu dn jas o} Buidisy 0005 ¢
0005$ pUE (Spasu o)) SPasu Sied Ljlesy pIemoy weibold [HM — MSI 20 L2
"SPISU aieD Y)est IBLun  pue saouspisal 0002 $
0002$ Wepuedapul dn 195 o} Buldiay premol sAepmebpug JHW %4
paAcidde |g10] SJUBUILWGY) pajsanbai jgjo) Aauabejwesbold uoneoyddy

Alrwwing suopesddy Suipung 1eax |jnd

~

€T0Z-TTZOT Ad ‘pPung juswmopuy js|




VILa.

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community ¢ Independence * Empowerment

ISK Board Program Report - October 2021

Youth and Family Department
Program Highlight: SAMHSA System of Care Grant

The Youth and Family Department is implementing the third 4-year SAMHSA System of Care (SOC) grant. The
grant award is $1 million per year. The focus of this grant is to work closely with Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) child welfare for youth in foster care or at risk of removal by DHHS to help coordinate
and deliver needed mental health services. This primarily occurs through the structured process at DHHS using
Team Decision Making (TDM) and Family Team Meetings (FTM). TDM- Team Decision Making involves
removals, placements, change of placements, or stability meetings. FTM- Family Team Meetings are for families
to discuss with CPS (Child Protective Services staff) or FC (Foster Care staff) a plan for action with services, failed
drug tests, need for additional supports, further court involvement, or plans with the case closing/being
transitioned.

An effective strategy has been to have Erin Hetrick, an ISK intake specialist, attend the DHHS FTMs and TDMs.
Erin provides an immediate intake or schedules a time that is more convenient for the family. There are several
other ISK employees who have participated, including Danielle Sackrider, and they have participated in over 450
TDMs/FTMs since August 2020. The meetings are effective in linking youth in Foster Care (FC)/Protective
Services (PS) to needed services, return youth to the community from residential placement to community-
based services, and reducing number of failed foster care placements, and help to divert removal. Outcomes of
the meetings include intakes for services, community resource referrals by ISK Community Health Workers,
referrals for substance use treatment for caregivers, or Mobile Crisis Response Team (MCR) crisis planning.
When a youth has current services, frequent outcomes include additional or more frequent support for the
family, crisis planning with MCR or that an additional referral made (e.g., Family Support Partner, Psychological
Assessment Team (PATS), or the STREET program.

Another effective strategy is that MCR attends some planned removals or follow-up on removals using trauma
informed interventions. A planned removal happens following a FTM and is when a family has been working
with Ongoing Protective Services and supports have not been sufficient to assure the child’s safety. MCR
provides the youth immediate support on the loss of family and placement with foster parents whom the youth
does not know. They are also able to help the youth and foster parent understand the next service and how to
contact MCR. MCR described one removal that became acrimonious. Police and protective services were
working with the parents and the youth was left alone in the police vehicle. MCR immediately began to provide
a trauma informed intervention to help the youth understand what was happening, what would happen next,
what “removal” means, what happens with siblings, and when they would be able to talk to their family again.



15K continues to work with DHHS State and local leadership and staff to identify improvements in
communication and coordination. The desired outcome is to assure youth and families involved with CPS or FC
have access to the mental health assessments, supports, and services needed.

Respectfully Submitted,

Patricia J. Weighman, LMSW/ACSW
Senior Executive, Youth and Family Services




VIlLa. Financial Condition Report




Py - Sy

L - YT AT

nof yuey
-wodes sy Suipredal suogsanb Lun aaey nok pinoys 2L0§-E56 Je Slaeg

184 10 DDES-PEE 1B HONEJ Jar 19BIU0D 0 551 (58] 25eS| ‘621 WO SOURSMOS ROILY JE (UOOU DOZZL-IN'Y 0£70L) LZ0Z ‘51 JSQUBAGN 10} PAANPAYIS S1 BUNSALL 331LILI0Y SILEUI] IxSU aY)

%68°0L SHZLE 525°L% 000'pL% S[e10)]

%EZ'0 SIS'0LS 52% 000'sLY Buurer) preog

%00"05 DOS'L% 005°1LS 000e$ walq Jod pseog
% EEITETEETY feryay 1ebpng

(2,001 196J81) SANIADIR PIROE 03 pajR[el Saunypuedxs [ENjOE puUE PAIOTRNG SSqUIRINT 10y ajep o) Jeak au} sjuasasde) Buimoljo) UL "STHNLIGNIIX 031 V13N Quv0d ¢

‘0Z0T ‘1€ 18qiuatdsg Ul Z96°6/ 1023 03 PRIRdwOoD 958 IL0°LZE 4O YUOM JAU

anpisod € 30y 9P |'8S9°CES SIE SONNIGRIE |EICI PUE LO0'SLO PSS 50 SIPSSE (0L SIPSSE jaU aapsod s1osl)al jasyg soueieg paydene syl {NOLLVLNCWQD SLISSY L3N) LIFHS AONYIVE T

"0202 "€ Joquiandag Jo SB §Z0'015'01L4 03 parediiod 098'ale 1S

Bugero; [eydeo Bunpzom samisod 2 10 prL'SHZ'EZS 1210} SSOHIGRI WAKND PUE pGH'DZ9'0FS 1200} 9SSR JUALING "SANIIGEI) JUALIND JBAC S}aSSE JUALIND JC aNjeA JUEDIILEIS € 51 aiswg *Aagod
paeog sad Sy *L20Z ‘07 J5quadss 1o B uonRZIUZBEI0 BY JO UORHPUOD FEIIUBLY [JRISA0 U} SIISA1 190YS SIUSEEE PAIEIE UL (NOLVLNDINOD VLYY ONBRIOM) LIIHS SONY Tve 'L

ASS 98¢y pO0'SISPE s90UE|Rg pung PUR SIBHGE 1ep0L 25571090 1005075 iSassY [E0L
{P66'8i8) 682'0r2 . paiaag Jof (sSA[UED 19N
goz'sel'y voa' L'y 198SE paExl Ul JUSUISSAU)
550°6L8F £L9'CTES pejgudisapun
a58v05'Ll  82K'0LA0L pageubisan
Paueeg pung
vIS'589°¢T  SbL'859'eS SIPNOEIT JEI0L
{SmaIno paLiaysn Jo 1au)
T ST {(sbebpoyspuog) Jgeg wie ] Guo 260286y Z60"LE6Y 88Ty LOISUSY 18N
funnealdap Jo 19it)
9zE'0LT 605°580°F anuasdy paleEQ PE6‘arE's S05'LLL'E S1esy paXid
098'1L29'8 LPG 2PR'SL JBnBG o3 eng 15)ASSY SLINMUON
ase' gl BLE'T6E'E AR parioy [T-31-7) 858'85Z° spledely PuUE SeeNDy
189202 £2905L'Y SJapinClg O} 8ng BEL'OFT P9Z° L5 SES Wolq NG
vrs'szy BLS'SES L aiEs o) ana a0l 'sas"y 208°612'S S8|qRARISANUDASY ParIDoY
9.6'999°2 PLIL LIS L s8|qeiey peNISTY 82219992 622 PTLEE SIUAUNSSAL) pUe ysed
sagll|qer) 1510SSY WaLIND
0Zf6 L A LZHT A 0261 Ad 1ZI0Z A2

“L20Z ‘0¢ Jaquwaydag pue §ZOT ‘0% Jaqundag Sulpus polied 104 183uS aoueleq

a2.n0s Buipun) Ag SIAILDE [RIUBLY B4}

pue voREZIURBIO U1 IO UDIIPLOS [BISURLI] [[B18A0 JELIND a1 Bupenjeas o3 [EaRMS uppEMIOM Argebpng jusuipst BuioBuo epacud o) pajuesald 5 senss [2IoUBUL Jo AlRWWng BUIMOT0] SUL

A PIBOE o1 'SIN930 JEU3 USUAL "Hodal Silf] Ul pajaolja] Sainlipuadxs pue onilaaal b 1o

weibosd Aq
spuag ainjipuadxa pUB SNLSAA) JO SUOEDEPU] UM pJECE 9yl Sep|acad Model Appuow SIy) “Saunjpuadxad pue sanusaad pajedianue o) SB pamalass S 18png enuue payoelod swesfiod yoem

1202 "Woe aguadag yBnoay 151, 5eg01a0 Jo pouad ay) 10§ suojjesado Jo Lguow (Z1) eajemg sy suesaldal podal syl
GEOMTHOS

V20Z ‘0% sequimdeg
papus sypeol (Z5) antam) 2y 103
180438 NOIUGNOD TVIONVNIS Oxv0a
COZBALEIEY JO Sadit0s pmuBagy -



XEPCPIACWSY W4 - SHoday 60-1Z0T z INY Z5-LLAE02I0ZI0L

“gUaeod JUEIEA O) SNP #|GRICAE] SLEIUEEURA 1 | o1
‘uolsod JUBDEA & &1 NP 5|0RIDARS St SOUBLEA SA|) gz
WetuAoid g paloddng puE UogeuIpaeD sspues pue spaddng ‘saanes weibold WapUsdspU| padeddng "BuRIING (IS J0 5T PESESLER O} SNp LaNSOd S)GRICAE} € L 5] sweiBoud g T

woteq peuiekite e saunby pepebpng w3 000°00 LS QN %6 BUIRaamMG SEOUBLEA ‘adfy s nppuadye Aq saoueLea S{gEioAE) PUB SKIRI0NR] Sussaldal
BUMONIC) BUL $10'FES 1.8 ARPLINGIdCE 4G UORISOE B|9EICAS) UE Ul e SaInpipyadxs Ajuentiasiog '655'8508.S JO SINpUadxe peyaBpng ot PaJECWOD D POZ 14 212 poLad (Z1) IUOW SAIEMT B3 JO) SMPUSEXT  SHENLIGNSHXS

BEG'GLL'EL AQ PESERAVE & pINOM LSLLIAMSS HEWAS SURIOW S FLE OFT’ L 1S AG 185PNG JSPUN U| SWRD SShuAs) YSId HEIEMS PUB 5L'9ER'LE Aq ajqeione) ez sosuadxe ySty HEWMS OIS 1
"panEDal SIUNOLUE BNFE 0l BNP LaniSed SIFEIONS) UE U1 S| SADUSIU] SIEsa150-) SHHOW aL
‘BEMSDSL SIUNGUIE BRI &) Snp UOKISod SIRIDAR) B Y| S1 STUTASY PHEIINA i

JMalaY PALBKXD BuE 28nBi peRGPNg WOl 000'001LS ONY %6 Bupeacxa saouwuey, “adf anuasa Ag SSOUBUBA HJRIGAB]UN PUR J|JEI0AE} suesaay
BUIMOTIS) UL "GLE'FEE' LS AIRLUNOIGEE AQ UCHEDD IQRIGARI-IN B Uj a2 senuanal "ARusnbasion 659 950'/3 0 Samussal pajebpng o palediucd Fr0P0E b.Ls #q o percefoud sk ponad (73} LOUDW dAI2M] SULJo) SehuaAey  SRANIAZE

FIEVHOAVANA = SJaquinN aaneal '218vH0AYS = SISQUNN SAJISOd (ULIRAD SOUBLEA UG SKIN

- - B - - - - - - - - - (L101930) IKOINI AN
BSYBEN'SL SLEPeR’l A B59'850°9L | ASFL FAEIE O00'BLE'S LLOZLS | SEACELS E6ISLLE | B/ LY 29 £47'885'F8 sesuadig oL
- - - - - - - - - - sainypuadxy Aoy HOg-WoN
OLY'4tE 2z | ne'ssz 265898 20Dl 1E - - - - ZeT'al L&F'801L sle'ae 2LE'Z0T 138y ssapEUioH
ZLS'BE5'S S86'L2 LPELEP'S ZL5'6I5'S - - ¥FZ2' M aL'lly F:r AN vl d Sy ily S61'296'F sle'pea'y fajuas Ssauay ‘Uo[RASIULINY S8 pabeuely
168'9¢8'2 gz | ers1e2 £52'647'T Y0 2ES°Z - Zos - - 16888 858" 19y LiFE'906"t YEE'ES0°T QD yEsH peIRiBaL
26t hel' 1 wi | 2600l SrE'LIr'es salian’Le - - - - ZEB'EL Lig'Lp2 LS8 62 r29'6¥2'08 stueBosd waa
PEREBL'PT {03 L00')) 489°102°52 28561 YT | I5FL 058'Z) - - 615°058'Y 215085 | L69'5PE0T 0SED0L'EL sweibeld WK
gL1'ag'z) 2665 SELVesLLL 21188 - - SEL'9EsS 186'208'G - - ORE'BST'9 TTL'ELD'L suzibord yna)
SN LIANT X
959'950'9L - |(s1ereas) PIPOZ'PL  639°880'92 | sS¥'L woEL £00'848'S LAL0Ts | 528'36L'S 8625125 | £bLLER 2D £/0'885'P8 ‘senusasy Imo)
Ey52i9'e) 18 [FEFETT ®ZSSAlELl  (wvg LS El |(00S'TLL) [EET) [CETREEE)] (ovzord [leevezey)  (9evoes v [I29'Sisl) P ETN (asuatha} anuaney) weweRles
FI-C AR - - 1581l LG6°LLL 188°LLL G8°LEL - - - - - - RIS} A28 NS
LLO'LEY'S £28'Z1L PEB'EYS'S LLO'LEP'S - - PEE'EKS'S LLO LEF'S - - - - UBAD WSy
GLTTSTOL §60'70P BLE'9890L BLE'ZSZ'0L - - - - BLE'95O'0Y  SLT'TSTOM - - anusnsy veBludi AplesH
086 L0€ 28TEE LT ive 086'L08 - . - - - . 242 0R& L0E S
000'54 L gai | 280z 60 L 000'51E - - - - - - 260'2L2 an0'skL anguesl| aBaa1s0d SHHAW
2E0'REY2Y YL | ¥E0'ILDL 09065568 GEQ'EEY 29 - - - - - - 090'605°68 9£0'8LP'ED anusasy plEIpEN salneg Leiseds
whpng sy BIUEUE pery =bpng = ymmgm ENRy Bapng |ERy whbpng E=t jsbpng EIANNEAZY
{_teogad S0l e oo ans ey vebioun AuesH saainag Aepads
8180 O JBAA LZAIZ Jew), ISy

SHEALGNIIXT GNV SSNNIAZH afvOICEN 1 INGWIDYNYIN XS IVIONYNI HE IS €



XS[XPIAOWSY WISl - SUodsY 601262

ﬂ WY ZEILLEZ0Z0Z/0L
“SHHAW ¢ Wl 2gissod B o] Snp 81 8oleUBA SIY] as
‘wojeuop Apadold o anp s SOURLIRA SIY] ~e
SINAIDS MRIASY JUSRISTY [ENUUY/BUILSAING LOISSILUPER)d JO UCLEZINN PSSERIOW O] 9N S| SOUBLIRA SIUL a¢
PRAIRDE] SJUNOWE [EMIR O 8NP S| SOUBLIEA SIY| we

‘MOBg possaippe a2 saunby pajebpng Woy gN0'0zd (NY %S Bulpaadxs ssouBleA "adkl SNUBASI Aq S20UBLEA SGRIGAR)-UN PUE SigRIoA.) Sjuasadal Dumollo) Ul "Le6'268°LS ABlewxasdde

AQ uoisod DIGEIOAZI-UR UE U BUE SSNUaAs) "AQUSRbasuon "£2¢'908' 124 J0 senuaaas patebang o) palediiod Z/¢'00¢°02¢ 238 ponsd (Z1) UfUOW SA|9M Bul 10} SanuaAsy

506255

815012

88219
PaZ'IBZ
TELBYOL
180'861°'¢L
088'Z£0'L
LER'E9R
ape'see
SOP'Pree
6g8'lLle

£Z£859'L2

0sg'eg
0000
LOG'EEY
00F'085°L
ono'al
QER'CLT
000'EY
£OC'EPe’L
8P4 786
IR A
1e8'eL)
060" 18l
285'28l'e

ae

ot

gt

1eBpng

1E/0Z Ad

SEION

“SINNIAT

TIEVHOAVAND = SIBAUNN SATBBaN 'FIEVHOAYS = SISGWNN SAISOd [UWNOD 23ueieA U0 BJON

98282 838°0¥2 S06°255 656'25% oLL'28% 025281 GA1'SE
SEa'SPe’| tob'6GF G S1P'S0iLE | vea'ig'gl S60060LL | 658 1iLe £ZE 20T

- 28 /19 93.'/18 88219 R I8 - -
(gez'sel) ZZ5'cek T A €282 62 162 &v8 -
(rra'sz) 8.5'020'L ZeL'EP0) S56'E08 OF2'206 8101 L Pa6'se

oF'v8l SLO'PLO'SL  1e0'BsL'eL | ZosgEzel $18'9/8'Z1 | £58°062 82729
o9zr'66 POv'CEB 0B8'ZED’ ) L0898 86¥'86.L £9C°06L Z6E'SLZ
162'892 avs'ses L£8'eo9 042'88) oHg'0r 0L2'toF 586'TTL
Z10'60% 985082 PG '5es REF 02T 68611 9625 685571
182'688") 28¥9'096'1 SOV #¥E'S Ze6'1.2'L 00L'8SE°) 9z7.'889 G0£'686'L
{se6'2e2) FE2'vb5 658118 Z1a'og §10'vrl Z81'bar pee 18l
(Le8'/6E°L)  ZIE008'08 €29'959'LZ | eerore’sl SDE'0SG' AL | BES'PSE'E 8LE20L'F
(86C ¥v20'L)  (86CvZ0 1) - - - {g6Z'¥20'L) -

8ys 86128 055'68 BEL'Z8 059'98 - -
$08'68 0566 000'03 #09'68 Q00'01 - -

- LOD'EBY LOO'CBY L00'E5P 100'shr - -

- 00r'0es’L O0t'088°L oor'0ss'tL oOP'065 'L - -
{gog'zL) ZeL'e 0009l Zee's 000'8E - -

8242 808° 108 DER'ELT 209°LOE 0ES'SLT - -
{e80's) £18'68 000'Er 218'6¢ DOO'ER - -
280's9 0ZF00'L £OC'ErS’L 0zZr'a0s'L £9T'EYSL - -
{062'a1) £56'c06 8¥.'286 QCH'CO8 8. 86 - -
{gor'tse) SPC'R6L'T)  £L8'L5S2L | sphE'eslL'EL £18'185'2) - -

- Lea'ssL LEE'EL) - - 1E6'sL1 IEB'ELL
(L£g'82) 69L°ZSL 000181 - - BOE'ZS1 00o'L8L
{ono'ool) 189'259'c 86'28L'e - - 285'269'E 185'264'¢

anuelep BNy Jebong [eroy jehpng Jeniay 3abpng

S0, S20N0G mz_u_::m BUD pund lelalss) SlES

jeq 0} BB |Z/0ZIEAA (8351

(LID143Q) IWODNI 1IN

sasuaxg =01

UMCPMEI] UIlE [BICF

Je)|ayg ssPUloH

speIg AN

SJutiD) SRS PUE [BIDLAL S0

JSjuan 5220V ‘UogensIuwpy are) pabeuepy
oInD WeeH pajedisul

swerbold vaa)

sweibold YiN

sweIBtig uInoA

SFAENLIGNT XS

sanuaney 101
{esusdxg) anuaasy lUsSISS
¥sasa) pagolsan

sucpeuaq

[nusaAsy [E307

UOREDO|Y Aunor)

1528

swebfiold YHEO/MVYSSYd
anUaAsy MJ0D

anusagy pauled

anu2AsY GNH

SluBS) 2jElS PUE JBISPad IS0
0z, premgiine s J9 papdlold
20 |

pund [giauan

{ANNIAIY

STHNLIANIAXT OGNV S3NNIAZY - JONYTYd GNNL 3 1L0RILSTENN - INSWIDYNYIA X8I TYIONTNIS WG] O




XSPCPAAGWIRY Wl ~ U083 E0-1202 .v WY 28 £ L EZ0/0ZI0L

uayayg AfWie Jo LOEZIGN pOSBAKL O] SN €1 SAUBIRA SIU) H¥
“seak Jeosy snsian eak [Welh sau) pur sueib QnH 93 10§ acuaiep Suln Syl O) SNp 1 SAUBlIeA SIY] )4
wea) UjeaH jpiolaeysqg pajeiBbaju) siqop YSHINYS PUE WIS jusurioriwy pepoddng wsHINYS eu 203 Bulpusdsispurt o) amp Auelusld § aduellea sig) 4%
“sasuadxe ABOIOULSD | LONELLIOIY DUBR $321AI8S [EMIOENUOD 1840] O] BNP §] SOUBLIEA SI4] I¥
“seuues Waleding pojeides-uoy JO UOHEZIGN J3MO] ALl O 8NP §| SJuRLIEA SIY | ay
suoddns AmnEaes pue 8187 [BUCEIS 0] DUNS [2ISUSD) JO SSN DESRAIDSD B O] 8NP §1 S0URLEA SI1 0y
Wanedly S]B1S PUE S8IIAISS 894 ‘UOHEUIDI00D
SRS PUE FPoddng Iuawijeas] AHUNULIWGS SNPSSEY 'Sa0IAes BUAT AJURWWGS PUE 3.e5 [BU0SIS JO UOHEZHNN JoMa] B 0] SNP § SYURLRA S ar
‘SONAIBE PASEOSILION PLRE JUaNedU| S1ElS JO) UONBZIIN PSSBaloan 0} aNp 3 SUBUeA SIL v

MOjeq paurepdxe s
seun by pajelipng wauy 000'028 ANV %6 Buipasaxa seausze “adf) simipusdxe Ag seoueUEA SIEI0AR-UN BUE SgRI0AE} SiUasaida) Bulmolof SLLIL SE6'CHE’ LS AlRlewxcidde Ag uonsod

s|grIOAR) € U) 8)8 SaInkpUadxs ‘ARuanbasuog gLF's0) 12§ 10 sainppuadxe patabpng o) pasedwiod £8p'851 LS e polad (Z1) uow anam) aug Jog sumipuadia  SFUNLIGNIIXS



VIILb. Utilization Report



=

pun4 [eiauan

:asinog Buipun4 Aq (s|geioaejun)/e|geioney

Wd 2€'9 LZ02/61/0L

12/0Z AJd SNOSIHVJINOD NOLLVZITLLN

120z ‘yiog Jequisidag ybBnoiy 0zZ0z ‘ISL 1940320 :poudd podsy

S3DINYIS LNIILVANI ALINNININOD HLNOA

|
L66°25¢% 850°2v2$ x JRINNAS 1509 TVNNNY SSOuS|
ve £z 12 SADYHIAY ATHLNON|
L66°255% 20t 250°Zvzs 91z ePL'L1Z% (8 STVLOL
996'79% 23 Z.1'0Z% €2z SyL0ps v REEIEIRER
£25°728 44 zl1'0z$ £Z 985°0vS$ av 1snoanv
vigols 8L zll'0z$ €2 c18°85$ £ Felily
ovs'szs £z z21'02% 4 ¥98°1% [ annr
re2s 62 z.1'02% [+ z32°0Z$ 44 AVIN|
220'72% zz zi1'0Z$ £z £.7'8% 8 Y|
219°2v8 I 11028 €2 SLL°.8 g8 HOMVYIN|
FAWAET 8 221028 €2 268°¢s 4 Adynygad
LEL'2s ge Z11'0Z$ €2z 202°828 [ AEVNNVT
L26°vZ8 22z ZL1'02% €z £Ly'0zs 1z EECTIERE]R]
0va'yas 19 zll'0zs £z 0% 0 HIINIAON|
60L°LSS 6% ziL0zs £2 L60°' LTS 1S ¥380100
(s1qe40AB4UN) (aigesoaejun) (aiqesoaeyun) siejjog sfeg siejjog sheg siejjod sheq HLNOW|
3|qeloaes 3|qeioae ajqesore
aLi EEITENETTTT] asualayiq [enay LZ/0Z Ad 196png 1Z/0Z A4 [en1ay 0Z/6) Ad
1500 150D skeg



PIEJIP3N
:aainog Buipund Aq (s|qeioaejun)/ejgeione

Nd 2€'9 L20e/6L/0L

1Z/0Z Ad SNOSIHVJINOD NOLLVZITILN

S3DIAY3S LN3ILVANI ALINNININOD 1TNAV IN

1202 ‘Y0 Jequisidag YyBnoiyy 0Z0Z IS1 1890300 :polisd Hoday

Po'p0e’ss 001998 ovL'6LLYS 1802 TVNNNY SSOd9|
9% gge z9¢ S39VHIAY ATHLNOW
79'P0c°ss | 8es°s | 001L°998°¢S | SLO'Y | OPL'6LL'YS | 2YEY STVLOL
0Z¥'1L05% 1zs §21°22E% sgg £89°LvP$ it FEEETEES
059'68F$ 0LS §/1°22E8 S€E 686'25F$ 08t lsnony
85.°cSh$ iy SL1°72ES sgg £68'S1P$ Lir Anr
856°.9F$ L8v S21°22E$ SEE 65.°05€$ 0.S annr
SI8'VIvS Sep S11°ZzZc$ See Sv0°182$ 862 AVIN|
0.8'Z6€$ oLy s.1°zecs sgg z8z'1szs 92 YAV
Z55'7S€$ 0.€ 5.1°2Z5$ sg¢ z1a'29zs £82 HOHVIA
gL1'BEPS 65k G/1°2zes see vLL'VLES 0ss AdvNya3d|
£TV'8.lrS 667 5.1°z2cs see 191's2¢€$ $6% AMVANVP
LZL0tP$ [X:17 gll'zzes Se€ 6.¥'18¢% zov ¥3gn3o3al
S.9°L07% ozv sll'zess gee 629'582% zog HISINIAON]|
£Z0'60F$ 332 SLLT2ES SEE 828°562% £0¢ {€380100|
(s1geloaeyun) (alqeloAaeiun) (ajgeloaeun) siejjog sheg siejjog sheq siejjog sheq HLNOW
a|qelone B|qEIOAE] ajqeloned
ala asuasayiq EEETET] [emay 1L2/0Z Ad 12bpng 1Z/0Z Ad [emay 0Z/6L Ad
1s0D 1809 sfeq



INd £€:9 LZ0Z/ELI0L

| LS8'602 S llysg'el) € Log'028 § 158'602% 59r'8e0'9es S12'92L  PLL Ivi0L
s |(pig'el) s eszoe 8 LEL'BYL'ES 6¥2Z YN 1dag (dis) sT10
sl - slezl’ie ¢ £E¥'6983 £59'L 98 9254 1dag| ‘eI SISO
B - $ | 96£°866 8 | 206020228 z90'5ZL 6.2 (A4 1deg| (W'sis10/0d
13410 49 1IAIH 1500 2]lnes paaes aied Yuow
aaunog Buipung Ag aaueuep (ajqei0nelUN) MSI 10 "ON Areq
3|qeloARd sfeg “Bay
31v3d Ol ¥VIA TVNLOY
SNOILYINdOd 71V TVLOL
962'rrL vES sgp'pL vov IvioL
v9'L9L'L$ ral ¥N ydag (a18) 8710
Z89'¢Ls 9z {4 LA 1dag| -3 SISO
L96'29E°9LS 6Sv'pL  8l2 0zZ$ ydag| (Wslso/od
18bpng 1509 891M8S paAaag ayed YIuow
(s1qesonejun) sl j0 ‘oN Areg
Slqesoned sfeqg ‘BAY
31Vd OL HVIA TVNLOY
NOLLYINdOd 11Nayv adl
| 028'825% 90L'9L¥°LLS 9e6°'LS  €0¢ V1oL
50Z'952% v8r'08es 59 YN 1dag (dig) s712
058vZZ3) 2LV €191 8L vZs$ wesg| "s3 SISO
Sob'l6hs A €Z£'05 091 v0z$ wdag| (yslsomod
Inaoso spoddng Buiam Aunwiwo) pue alen |euosiad 1ebpng 1509 ERTINE I =T TS aey | yuow|
asaym Bumas wapuadapu alow-(dlg) weisboid uspuadapu| papoddng (ejqelonejun) WSI j0 ‘oN Aeg
alqeioned sheg “Bay
“ango0 spoddng Buin AHUNWWo pue 31vad 01 HVIA IVNLOV
alen [euosiad alaym Bumas pasusor-("y'S) [ejuapisay pazieloads
NOLLYINdOd LINav I
“Auagonpaold pue agsuapusdapul
‘uaisnpul AlUnwwos jo 2ok B Uia Asuspiyns- Jjas |euosiad
UIBJUIBLL JO 8SE8.0UI 0] Seinas-(S D) soddng BulAl Alunwwon (0s2'€zes) £V LLY ¥62 L IvioL
[5 WN ydag (dis) 5712
"0} 'Bulyieq 'Buipssy ‘Aupune| se L0¥'28% ELELLS ¥l 8 808% jdag| 'S3H SISO
uyons sanaoe [euosiad Ajigp jo uc spueu-('0°d) sied jeuosiad ST a0ps) L5L'90P$ 082 L 1Ep°1S ydag| (w's)snoind
18bpng 1509 aames  pames a1ey yluop|
(a1qes0aB3UN) Msi jo "ON Aieg
ajgeloned sheg ‘Bay
31lvd QL ’v3IA TVNLOV

(@ara3as) NOLLY INdOd HLNOA

LZ0Z ‘W€ Jequaidas ybnolys 0ZozZ 451 4290390 :polad poday
SNOLLYINdOd TV

IVILNIAIS3H SISO B IHYD TYNOSHId (dIS 8 U'S) S180ddNS ONIAIT ALINNINNOD
oo0ZBIWE|RY 0 SadIAlas paleibaju)



ViILe. Investment Report




Guarterly Cagh & Investmonts Raporl
Quarter Ending September 30, 2021

Coat Maturlty
Finnreial inatitufon Typo of investmant Basls Dals % Yioki
GASH
PNC Qparating Bemand Bepasi Accatn! $24,620,%07 NA 0.09%
Payralf Accouil 35,00
Aacnied Leave Raserva 116,067
Preday Ratmbureemant Actount 40,315
Verious Potty Geah Funds. $030
‘Total Ceah Acconnis §24, 791,221
INVESTMENTS
GDAR's (via ndapandemt B nk) Ci¥s lssuad Under FDIG LIm& of $250,000 §524,665 TrS/adaz 0.10%
CDAR'S (via Indepontdent &ank) C0's istiad Under FOIC Limd of $260,000 340468 THE2032 0.10%
Talel CDAR's 51014024
CE {vin Independent Bank} [+l3] 280,807 THER022 0.20%
GO (Via ldepensient Bank} e §2,600,000 TH2022Z 0.20%
Toel CD's 32,760,607
\L.5, Fedaral Gavemanent (via PNG] Troagury Noles {for bond repaymant) - 4,510,229 32022 242%
Tolal fnvesiments $8,283,769
TOTAL CASH AND BNVESTMENTS $33,074,b81
FETrEETT—————
% of Hokiinge By insBufion % of Holdings By inveatma it Typa
PN - Cash T4.95% Cosh T4.85%
11.5. Federsl Governmant ivis FNC) 13.66% co 8.32%
CDAR's & CDjvin Independent Bank) §1.38% Treanury Nolag ) 13.66%
100.00% CDAR' 307%

100.00%

% of Holdings By Investment Type

CDAR'S Under 5250K
EES

Operating Cremarnd
Peposit Arnocnt
B1%




VIILd.  September Dishursements MOTION



VIIILd.

INTEGRATED

Services of Kalamazoo

Community e Independence ¢ Empowerment

Integrated Services of Kalamazoo

MOTION
Subject: September 2021 Disbursements
Meeting Date: October 25, 2021 Approval Date:
Prepared by: Charlotte Bowser October 25, 2021

Recommended Motion:

“Based on the Board Finance meeting review, [ move that ISK approve the September
2021 vendor dishursements of $8,415,856.99.”

Summary of Request:

As per the September 2021 Vendor Check Register Report dated 10/12/2021 that includes
checks issued from 09/01/2021 to 09/30/2021.

[ affirm that all payments identified in the monthly summary above are for previously
appropriated amounts.

Date of Board
Staff: C.Bowser, Finance Director Consideration; October 25, 2021




